
Page 1

MINUTES 

Members Present:   Chair David Shein, Jim Fairchild, Nancy Adams, LaVonne Wilson, 
Chelsea Pope, Rich Rohde, and Joe Koubek 

Absent:     Craig Pope, Randy Hunter, Ken Jacroux, Wes Scroggin,

Staff:    Community Development Director Jason Locke, Planner John Swanson 

 CALL TO ORDER

Chair David Shein called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes of the September 2, 2012 meeting were presented and approved as read.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were none.

OLD BUSINESS

Community Development Director Jason Locke outlined our process of public involvement for 
the Main Street project.  He concluded the survey results with a synopsis report of every survey 
result.  Based on the survey results and committee discussion, Option 1 is off the table.  The 
committee concurred.  Mr. Locke went on to say that the other options were closer together in 
the survey results and invited group discussion on the remaining two options.  Asked about Polk 
County preferences, he replied that the County seemed to be most concerned about their 
maintenance responsibilities and change in general.

Chair David Shein asked how much planned improvement was actually on County property and 
not in R-O-W.  Mr. Locke answered that the County property most involved is on the corners and 
that County officials seemed to be concerned with maintenance than improvements on their 
property.  Chelsea Pope added that County officials had asked her about interference with 
community events.  She assured them there would be none except that electrical upgrades were 
necessary but should not be an issue regarding streetscape.  Mr. Locke said that they need to 
upgrade both electrical and perhaps move some irrigation.  Joe Koubek agreed that electrical 
should be a non-issue regarding our project.  Jim Fairchild remarked that the County needed the 
electrical upgrade regardless of the streetscape project.  Ms. Pope concluded discussion on 
County issues by saying that she would get further clarification from them on electrical upgrades 
so that everything will be compatible when the project is complete.

The discussion turned to façade improvements on downtown buildings in the vicinity of the Main 
Street project.  Rich Rohde commented that some of the downtown buildings don’t look good 

CITY OF DALLAS
Urban Renewal Advisory Committee
Dallas City Hall
187 SE Court Street, Dallas, Oregon 97338
Tuesday, November  6, 2012 – 5:30 p.m.



Page 2

and we should do a promotion effort for the Façade Grant and Loan Programs.  Chair David 
Shein asked if the Façade Programs were Urban Renewal expenditures.  They are not.

Discussion returned to design specifics for the final plan selection.  Joe Koubek reminded that 
survey results favored open views of the courthouse and that many survey responses wanted no 
trees at all on courthouse side of street.  He further stated that some of the plan elements we are 
considering, particularly the trees on the courthouse side, are not consistent with survey results, 
but he prefers Option 2.  The entire committee concurred that inward rounded corners at each 
end of the Courthouse should be part of the plans modified from the current design.  Rich Rohde 
asked if we could consider smaller trees in planters.  Mr. Locke answered that planters don’t 
change the size of the trees.  He said we would probably be using Japanese Snowbells as they 
are smaller, less dense, and they are doing well on Court Street.  Rich Rhode asked how the 
Court St. improvements are performing and the committee was pleased to hear that Court St. 
was exceeding expectations.

Further discussion on project elements included the following:  There should be trees on 
courthouse side, but kept at a minimum.  Jason Locke reported that furniture placement was 
flexible because of wider sidewalks and parallel parking. 

Chair David Shein asked for a brief breakdown on the differences between Option 2 and 3.  Mr. 
Locke reported that Option 3 had the mid-block bulb-outs and that there was more control of 
storm water.  Option 2 is simpler and less expensive, the design seems more parking friendly, 
and it provides larger storm collection facilities at the block ends.  Jim Fairchild remarked that 
the solution could be a rain garden at the center of the 800 block, but without the bulbs.  Chair 
Shein said that it sounded like we were discussing a modified Option 2.

Joe Koubek brought up a kiosk-type element that could be interpretive and historical designed to 
be able to change content occasionally.  Rich Rohde reiterated his desire for some kind of 
military service memorial.  Jason Locke said that it’s important that all sign themes stay 
consistent.

Mr. Locke informed the group that we are approaching the “micro-designing” phase of the 
project and that we would re-employ Greenworks to develop and finalize a preferred design.  
Joe Koubek asked for clarification on tree planters and the consensus was no planters.  Jason 
Locke asked for last thoughts on seating in the center of the 800 block and the group concurred 
that there would be none.

NEW BUSINESS

None

MEMBER COMMENTS

Chamber of Commerce Director Chelsea Pope reported that the League of Oregon Cities tour 
that went through Dallas was a tremendous success.  City officials from other places loved our 
downtown improvements so far and a couple have already contacted EVCOR for quotes on 
benches like ours.  Tour participants also really liked our way-finding singage.



Page 3

STAFF COMMENTS

None

OTHER BUSINESS  

None

The meeting adjourned from City Hall at 6:35 P.M.


